EPA PUBLI C MEETI NG
OCEAN DI SCHARGE CRI TERI A
September 8, 2000

7:00 p.m
MR. TOROK: Good eveni ng. It's 7:00
o' clock, according to my watch. So why don't we start
finding your way to some seats? And if we need to set up
more chairs, we can do that in back. But there's still some

empty chairs, especially up front.

My name is Steve Torok, Environmental Protection
Agency, and |I'm here in Juneau. l"d i ke to welcome you all.
| think the agenda was at the front table. And if you
haven't signed in, we really would appreciate everybody
signing in. And al so, if you have not indicated whether you
want to testify or not, but if during the course of the
proceedi ngs you decide that you do want to, just give a hand
signal or something and we'll get you on the |ist and give
you an opportunity to testify.

Al'l right. We've got everybody back. Great. Okay.

What we are going to start, Mayor Dennis Egan is here. And
we' ve asked himto give some opening remarKks. And then we
will go through some introductions, some short presentations
and then move fairly quickly into testimony. M. Mayor.
MAYOR EGAN: Thanks, Steve. Actual ly, it

was casual Friday, but | went home and put on a shirt and
tie. Actually, | did have a shirt on. Never mnd. |I'm a
short-timer so they can't do anything to me.

Anyway, | want to welcome you to the second in a
series of Regional Hearings that are being held throughout
the nation. And we're pleased that you have called these

heari ngs and because you've called these hearings at | east
you' ve selected Juneau for one of the three sites to hold
t hese Regi onal Hearings at.

It was just over a year ago that Juneau was singl ed
out as one of the destinations that related to the | argest

fine in history against a member of the cruise industry. And
because of that, we invited the president of that
organi zation to come to Juneau and meet with the public. And

| think because of that conversation this community had with
its president, the State of Alaska, Department of
Environment al Conservation under the | eadership of M chele
Brown, the U. S. Coast Guard, the Environmental Protection
Agency and Sout heast Conference in cooperation with our
communities and the cruise ship industry is to be commended
for their participation. | think we're making great strides
here in Southeast Alaska in developing voluntary measures to
assure compliance and adherence to more stringent
environmental measures to protect the environment of
Sout heast Al aska. A lot more is to be done, but at least in
this neck of the woods, Southeast Al aska, this region is on
the | eadi ng edge.

We're also pleased that the Environmental Protection
Agency is going to utilize the data that's gained in the
state Initiative in its national assessment. So they' Il use
the voluntary guidelines that we have come up with and are
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still working on fine tuning here in Southeast Alaska in
their national assessment.
Again, welcome back to Al aska. A | ot of you have

been here before. And it's a pleasure to have you here
agai n. And it will be partly cloudy tomorrow so stay over
and buy locally. St eve.

MR. TOROK: Thank you, Dennis. At this time
we'll go through some introductions. And we'll just start at
this end of the table and if you'll just go through and pass
the m ke.

MR. VOGT: Good eveni ng. l"m Craig Vogt.

Il"m from EPA in Washington, D. C. headquarters. And you get
to hear more fromme in a little bit.

MR. KREI ZENBECK: " m Ron Kreizenbeck and
" m acting Deputy Regional Adm nistrator for EPA Region 10 in
Seattle.

CAPTAI N BASEL: " m Brian Basel, Chief of
the Office of Compliance with Marine Safety, Environment al
Protection at Coast Guard headquarters in Washington.

CAPTAI N PAGE: | m Captain Ed Page, Chief of
Mari ne Safety, Environmental Protection Division for the 17th
Coast Guard District which is the Al aska Regi on. [ m
involved in the | ast several years, of course, in the safety
and environmental protection of cruise ships, but put nmore
emphasis on the environmental side in light of environment al
concerns that -- public concerns that were raised with
environmental issues this |ast year.

We've been working closely with the Alaska State
Depart ment of Environmental Conservation and the EPA in its
Cruise Ship Initiative this last year with respect to
oversight of cruise ships, conducting samplings that were
funded by the cruise industry to get a better understanding
of what the discharges were composed of going off the ships.
|"ve been working on that whole process this summer and
meeting periodically with the environmentalists, ADEC, cruise
i ndustry and the Coast Guard.

MR. CONWAY: My name is M ke Conway. ' m
with the Al aska Department of Environmental Conservation. And
|"mthe Director of the Division of Spill of the Statewi de
Public Service and |I'm the coordi nator for M chele Brown to
the Initiative. And al t hough Mayor Egan sort of took ny
opening remarks, 1'll have an opportunity to talk a little
bit more about that in a m nute.

MS. COMBES: " m Marcia Combes with the EPA
out of Anchorage. And I'm the Director for Al aska
Oper ati ons.

MR. CARLSON: " m Dorn Carlson fromthe U.
S. Environmental Protection Agency in Washington, D. C. " m

in the Oceans and Coastal Protection Division. That's Craig
Vogt's division.

MS. HURLD: And |'m Kat hy Hurl d. " m al so
from EPA headquarters in Washington, D. C. Also with the
Oceans and Coastal Protection Division.



MR. CHARLTON: " m Tom Charl ton. l"min the
Of fice of Wastewater Management at EPA headquarters. And |
work in the NPDES Program

MR. TOROK: Thank you. Can everybody hear
okay? And if you do have trouble hearing, just again give me
a high sign or a hand wave and we'll take care of that. Al |
right. At this time, Ron, did you want to offer some other
initial comments? And then the Coast Guard and the state
m ght have some further brief comments.

MR. KREI ZENBECK: Wel |, Mayor Egan alluded
to the work that's been going on in Juneau with the cruise
i ndustry and the regul atory agenci es. And because of that

work, a |lot of you have a lot of really good information to
offer to this process. That's one of the reasons why this
hearing is being held here. So | look forward to not
speaking anymore and |istening to you.

CAPTAI N PAGE: Com ng from headquarters, the
Of fice of Compliance works hand in hand with our officer
i nvestigations and our standards directorate. And we are part
of the interagency partnership on gray water and wastewater
management with EPA and some of the other federal agencies.
And what we're hoping to do is take some of the best
practices from around the country and set up a national
program

MR. CONVAY: One of the things that was
tal ked about briefly by Mayor Egan and Captain Page was the
vol unteer cooperative effort with the Coast Guard, EPA,

state, local communities represented by Southeast Conference.
And | saw Loren Gerhard in here earlier. Loren, are you --
Loren is raising his hand. He gladly stepped in to represent

the communities of Southeast Alaska since this was an
Initiative that they had tal ked about at their | ast
conference about a year ago.

And in addition to those parties, we had a meeting
| ast December to talk about what is going on, let's try and
get our arms wrapped around the issues, try to figure out
what could be done, what needed to be done, if anything, that
sort of thing. And in the back of the room over in that
corner, the far corner to my right, there are three documents
that if you haven't had an opportunity to get in the past,
they will be good references for information avail able to the
public about what this so called Alaska Cruise Ship
Initiative has been doing.

We have a website that we've been trying to use to
keep al most all the information that we have on meetings,

m nutes of meetings. If a party brings forward a report that
pertains to the issue, |ike the General Accounting Office
report, that sort of thing, we post links to it on our
website. There's a copy of our website page so you can take
that with you if -- and gives you an idea of the contents
that are within that that are |inked. And if you have access
to the Internet either at home or through the |ibrary, you
can get ahold of -- well, this represents about -- all the

|l inks on here represents about a full file cabinet drawer of

what | keep as my sort of informal file on this.
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There's also a document that is a two-page front and
back, one-page document that summarizes what the work groups
have been doing since January of this year. And it talks
about some of the things that we're | ooking at to do in the
future.

And a |l arger document that is there is a report that
was filed as of June 1st for the activities that this
Initiative had been working on. There were four work groups
set up to work each of the issues. The first work group was
the Water Quality Work Group. So all the questions and
concerns about water and the associ ated waste management have
been thrown into this work group, which has met numerous
times over the | ast eight or nine months.

There's an Air Quality Work Group that's been | ooking
at the air em ssions issues and setting up the monitoring
progranms for the summer.

There is an Environmental Leadership Group which is
designed to take -- to go beyond compliance, to not worry so
much about who has authority and jurisdiction and what's
required and are people legally doing what they have to do as
a mnimum but to get into a different |evel that | ooks at
some practices that aren't required, that can improve
operations of the vessels and also improve communication with
the public. So Environmental Leadership Wbork Group again has
been meeti ng.

The fourth group is for oil spill response. And that
has been -- has evolved through the | eadership of Captain Rob
Lori gan. And Rob, you want to raise your hand in the
audi ence? And Captain Lorigan is the federal on-scene
coordinator for Southeast Al aska. There's a whol e pl anning
process for oil spill response under the O | Pollution Act of
1990 that requires area planning worKk. And that has -- the
wor k that was done by this commttee has gone into that so
there's no | onger a separate work group.

Well, the report, again it deals with what everybody
had agreed to do to start this summer's cruise ship season.
We've been doing a |lot of work this summer. And we're
grateful that EPA at least is taking a | ook at what's been
done in Al aska. | must emphasi ze that the purpose of the
work in the work groups, |'mgoing to read a moment fromthe
executive summary of the report. And that is to identify the
waste streams and spill risks from cruise ships that could

i mpact Al aska's air and water resources, develop pollution
prevention and waste management sol utions including better

technol ogy and management practices that will elim nate or
reduce i mpacts, assess what process is needed to verify
compliance and keep Al askans i nformed. So this is part one

of a report.

Part two, we're | ooking at that to be a report to
come back to the public and for everybody to find out what
happened this summer, what was -- what did they find out, put
it in some sort of a context, have some recommendati ons for
the different members on where do they go into the future.



And all of this is focused on Al aska overall. Most of
the effort's been | ooking at the Inside Passage because
cruise ships stay inside for so long and don't have the
opportunity |like they do out of M am or Los Angeles to go
ri ght out at sea and be able to take care of their wastes in
ot her ways. So it's focussed on that, but we appreciate the
effort of EPA at least to come up here to Alaska to talk to
the people who have been working with it and find out -- get
the Al askan perspective of the national issue.

MR. TOROK: Thank you, M ke. And we very
much appreciate and commend the Department for taking the
| eadership role on the voluntary effort on the cruise ship

i ssue. And we hope that the public will understand, there is
a distinction between the two. The assessment that EPA's
conducting nationally is intertwined with and will utilize a

| ot of the information and data that has come up and will
come about with the Alaska State Initiative.

At this time before we have Craig's presentation,
which will really outline more specifically what the EPA
assessment is all about, there are -- in addition to Mayor
Egan, there are a couple other elected officials in the
audience 1'd like to just recogni ze. Senator Kim Elton is
here. Thank you, Senator. Al so, Assembly person Jim Powel |
is here and Representative Beth Kettul a. Thank you.

Craig, turn the mcrophone over to you and if you
need assistance, holler.

MR. VOGT: | may need assistance. The crowd
wi Il judge that. Name is Craig Vogt. We'll get to know each
other a little better this evening. |"ve been with EPA since
1971. It's a real pleasure to be here with my friend Ron
Krei zenbeck who -- he and | started back in 1971 in the
Seattl e Regional Office of EPA. Did a lot of field work with
Ron taking samples of wastewater treatment plants where there

was no treatment. We've been involved in those types of
i ndustrial discharges for a number of years. And Ron is
still hanging in there. He's Deputy RA of the Regi onal
Of fice.

| took a short detail to Washington in 1973. And they
woul dn't |l et me come back, | guess, until now. So it's
really a pleasure to be here. And | want to thank the Mayor
for the rain today and the rain tonight because wi thout that
rain, we m ght not have such a good crowd. And | certainly

do appreciate you com ng out on a Friday evening. And it's
certainly my pleasure to be here as well.

We're here in an information gathering mode. We, on a
nati onal basis -- and | will say right up front that the
effort here in Juneau by all involved in the work groups that
were just described are far and away our best information
source so far that we've found. And | think that -- |

haven't | ooked extensively worl dwi de, but | think that's --
this is worl dwi de. And what we're doing here will have
international implications. So if it started here in Juneau,
congratul ati ons.

And 1'1l say that the cruise ship issue is something

new to us. We t hought about this back in -- a long time ago
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and we said not a big deal. Okay? In the early '70s we were
dealing with -- the Clean Water Act was passed and we had a
| ot of pollution sources on our hands. Crui se ships was not
a priority. It has become one. That's why we are here.

This is the third -- no. This is the second --
excuse me -- second of our public information hearings.
Heari ngs have a slightly stifling way of exchanging words and
i nformati on and communi cati on. | hope that's not the case
toni ght. We are being reported because | think it's

i mportant that we do have a record and be able to go back and
review what was said for clarification purposes and for
factual purposes. So we'll be in Mam on Tuesday. And t hen
we'll be into the analysis stage.

" m going to give a short presentation and just give
you a little bit of our perspective of why we're here and
where we're going. Then we can have clarifying comments or
guestions from the audi ence of anyone on the panel here.

Then we have 20 fol ks that want to make a statement tonight.

So |l will try not to be too |ong because |I'd rather hear you
t han you hear me.
Let's see. It's visible enough, right? | don't

really want to darken the room Can you see it fromthe
rear? Okay. Better. All right.
(Slide presentation.)

Threats Facing Our Oceans. My job is in the Oceans
and Coastal Protection Division of EPA in headquarters. And
this is our business. We don't have jurisdiction over al
programs to protect the oceans because just about everything
we do drains somehow into the oceans.

But there are stresses. And these are a number of
them Di scharges from point and non-point sources, marine
debri s. That's trash comng fromon |and, sometimes from
shi ps, vessels. Storm water runoff. Coastal development is
real major in a |ot of places. And as well as from the | ast
time | was in Juneau to today or yesterday when | arrived,
there's been a | ot of changes here as well. | understand

there's changes in a number of the smaller towns in Southeast
Al aska.

| ntroduction of non-native species. You call them
exotic species, invasive species. It's a real serious
probl em And vessels is one of the more serious vectors,
pat hways for bringing us some non-native species which can be
very serious in terms of ecological as well as econom c
probl em And then damage caused by commercial and
recreational use.

We have a number of sort of in general pollution
problems in our coastal waters. And not all of our coast al
wat ers, oceans are sick. Some places there are. We have a
number of disturbing trends. And there's some good trends as
wel | . | don't want to paint a totally black picture here
because it's not. But there are some difficulties.

We have eutrophication increasing in a number of
pl aces. That's al gal bloons, red tides, green tides, brown



tides. Some of these have human health implications. We
have beach closures fromthem I f you go out swi mm ng during
some of these tides, you'll have respiratory problems from
the aerosols fromthe waves that are breaking.

Hypoxia is the |lack of oxygen. And there's a dead
zone in the Gulf of Mexico, some 7,000 square m | es occurs
every summer. In the winter it goes away. Summer it comes
back. And this is mainly because the heartland of the
country is draining into the Gulf of Mexico com ng off our
farm | ands and i ndustrial discharges, municipal discharges
causing algae to grow, to die, take oxygen out of the water.
There's no sinmple solution to that, but we're working on it.

Beaches. Got a | ot more beaches seem to be closing.
Now, that's not necessarily because the water quality is
worse, but it could be. But at | east we know we're doing
better monitoring and reporting of that information.

And another is coral reefs. We have an executive
order from the president on a Coral Reef Task Force. It was

a federal task force that has been set up to study the
protection of our nation's coral reefs.

And then fish advisories. There are a |l ot of fish
advi sories and the number seems to be going up.

That's just sort of a backdrop of things nationwi de
that we see in headquarters. And |I'm not saying that's the
same here in Al aska.

We do have cruise vessels in a number of |ocations,
not just Al aska. When they | eave Al aska, they go south.

They head to the Caribbean and ot her places, of course. And
here we have a number of discharges that we have identified
and are starting to become more knowl edgeabl e about from
vessel s. If you'd asked us at headquarters six months ago
what are the discharges from ships, we probably could have
given you a partial list, but it's not one that we've focused
on in years, the cruise ship issue. We just call it an issue
because we're here and we're tal king about it. It's a
concern. We didn't know much about it because we'd been
focusing on other things.

Al'l right. We are now working on this. We received
a petition fromthe Bluewater Network that brought this
matter to our attention. "Il talk about that in a m nute.
But | just want to give you sort of a |list of things. And
you've seen maybe this |list before. They each have potenti al
for harmto the environment. And they are each controlled or
not controlled by various statutory and regul atory
aut horities. And we'll talk about some of them

Now, the Bluewater Network is an environment al
interest group located -- | think headquartered in San
Franci sco. They sent us a petition in March of this year.
They represent, | think, signatures of 53 other environment al
interest groups or individuals. And they had a number of
concerns relative to cruise ships, cruise |ines. And t hese
are sort of pulled out of the petition. It's a five-page
petition. It is avail able on our website, | believe, is it
not ?

MR. CARLSON: Yes.
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MR. VOGT: It should be. And we can get you

copies, if you'd like.

Sewage, the questions were on inadequate regul ation,
i nspection and enforcement. Gray water, the regul ations
all ow di scharge, and as we say, al most everywhere. Wwe' | |
tal k about that, the questions on what is gray water. Solid
waste, monitoring and enforcement. Hazar dous waste, clarity,
how does RCRA, the hazardous waste regul ati ons, apply to
cruise vessels. Cradle to grave is the question. I f you've
got a hazardous material, where is it created, where does it
go. Oily bilge water. And then other waste streams, we just
don't know that much about them is what the petition said.

This is the request to EPA, which is fairly -- a
measured petition, in my mnd. They would like us to
regul ate the wastewater discharges as well as manage the
waste in a better manner, | guess you m ght say. And woul d
| i ke us to apply permt processes to cruise ships.

Now, they asked -- first of all, they asked for EPA

to characterize cruise ship management of waste and
wast ewat er, how much, what's in it, where's it's going, what

are the environmental i mpacts. The other part of this is
what are the existing regulatory authorities, what | aws
apply, what statutes -- or excuse me -- what regul ations
apply, what policies are we inmplementing and how well is al

t hat wor ki ng. And then finally, it is what are your options
for doing it better.

Now specifically, this second major bullet here is
eval uate repealing the fact that we exempted cruise ship
di scharges that are incidental to the operations of the
vessel . We exempted those from our permt program back in
1973. That was a request. That's an eval uation. And t hen
al so consider more strictly defining and regul ating gray
wat er as well as strengthening the rules -- let's put it this
way: Clarifying and strengthening as needed is what they have
asked for in terms of hazardous waste.

Now, they did -- Bluewater Network did provide us a
foll owup petition that included air em ssions. And | know air
em ssions is a serious concern here with cruise ships in
Juneau. But we're focused not on air at this meeting. We're
going to do that in a separate activity. Not saying that
we're com ng back here to talk about air, but we're the water
fol ks and so we're going to deal with the water issues.

Sorry to say that. But EPA goes under various statutes. The
Of fice of Air Programs will deal with that part of the
petition process.

A couple other related activities that we are into in
my office in Washington that are related to this, we have a
petition to regul ate ballast water under the NPDES permit
program. We received that in January of '99. We prom sed to
have a report out by September of '99. And |I'm afraid we
haven't got an answer on that yet. But |I'm hopeful that this
fall, possibly at the same time we respond to the Bluewater



Net wor k petition, we will also provide at |east an initial
public response to how we will handle that petition.

Uni form national discharge standards for armed forces
vessel . This was an amendment to the Clean Water Act,
Section 312, 312N which required Navy and EPA to get together
and set standards for armed forces vessels so that -- for
di scharges, for wastewater discharges. And the idea there
was the Navy wanted not to have to meet varying different
states' standards as they went port to port. So they wanted
-- they got congress to pass the bill with EPA as a partner
for us to set standards for those wastewater discharges. We
have identified which discharges at this point, but we are
still working on what those standards woul d be. And we got
about three years to go -- four years to go? Three years,
according to the Navy, four years according to the EPA.

How' s t hat?
Now, |l ess related to that is there's an executive

order that came out, | think, in June on marine protected

ar eas. This is President Clinton issued this executive
order, and to strengthen our system of nationally- protected
mari ne areas. And EPA's part of that is to set -- to revise,
to take another | ook at our ocean discharge criteria which
apply to point sources going into the ocean. So if there's
an i ndustrial discharge going into the ocean, if there's a

city treatment plant discharge going into the ocean, those
woul d be potentially impacted by some more stringent
regul ations.

As part of that activity, we're | ooking at setting
speci al ocean sites aside for more stringent requirements for

anybody that would discharge into those ocean sites. Now,
t hat sounds really good except for it doesn't apply to cruise
ship vessels. It's just pipes to the -- fromthe shore.

Except for if there's a floating fish factory, we do permt
those in terms of having an NPDES permt that would apply to
that activity.

" m going to say a few words about what existing
regul ati ons we have and what we're doing. Clean Water Act,
Resource Conservation Recovery Act, which is the hazardous
waste and solid waste, SPA, which is the Shore Protection
Act, and the Marine Protection Research and Sanctuaries Act.
You don't have to memorize those, honest.

Now, key to this evaluation in the Bl uewater Network
petition was the question to regulate cruise ship discharges
under Section 402, which is our NPDES permt program And
Tom Charlton is our representative of that program and is
deeply involved in that activity. But what this essentially
says -- and we did this in 1973 -- is by regulation that the
followi ng discharges do not require NPDES permts: any
di scharge of sewage from vessels, effluent from properly

functioning marine engines, |laundry, shower and galley sink
wast es or any other discharge incidental to the normal
operation of a vessel. The exclusion does not apply to

rubbi sh, trash, garbage or other such materials.
So we excluded this in 1973 when we were under great
stress in terms of the smokestack industries, if you want to
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call them that. We were doing effluent guidelines and
setting permts to try for steel mlls, pulp and paper mlls,
fish processing, the |ike. That was when we started doing
this activity. And a decision was made at that time that
vessel s was not a priority pollution problem And |I' m not
saying it is today. But we're here tal king about one aspect
of vessels. This, | want to point out, is applied to al
vessel s. It's not just cruise ships.

All right. Now, part of the rationale for -- besides
ot her things were higher priority -- the fact that the Clean
Wat er Act, Section 312 does provide for regul ating sewage
from vessel s. And it requires vessels to have -- and you can
say properly operating -- marine sanitation devices to treat
sewage. EPA's role here is to set the standards. And we
have and I'll share those with you. Coast Guard is our
partner here. And t hey have, | think, the major role here.
They set the rules for design, construction, installation,
operation, inspection. s the word certification up there?
Shoul d be. So they kind of carry out the program

The MSD standards, generally speaking, Type |11
there's a holding tank. That's pretty easy. Type | and |
have different types of standards that's all owabl e discharge.

These are the standards. They were created in about
1980. Type 1l -- let's start at the bottom -- is a holding
tank. Okay. Pretty easy. Type |, effluent fecal coliform
count can't be greater than 1000 per 100 ml and not supposed
to have any visible floating solids. Type Il, the difference
there is 200 per 100 m . And that's the standard. Then
suspended solids at 150 mlligrams per liter. The sewage is
dealt with -- call it sewage or call it black water -- on
t hese vessels. We have standards. There are MSDs onboard
these vessel s. Questions that are facing us now and the data
we're now starting to see is how well are they working?

Now, | did have the opportunity today to sit in the
wor ki ng group meeting of the Alaska Initiative. And the
guestion on no discharge zones was raised. And the Clean
Wat er Act does allow setting no discharge zones. Sets out
some criteria. And those criteria include the fact that it's
somet hing that's important to an ecol ogical preserve,
something in a very sensitive area.

The other key part is the fact that you can't set a
no di scharge zone unless you have adequate facilities to punmp
out on shore. Now, we've done a number of no discharges
zones nationally and a number of states have decl ared al
their waters as no discharge zones, but these are primarily
ai med at boaters, small boats. And my knowl edge of this
situation here is there are not adequate pump-out facilities
i n Sout heast Al aska. But states, if they have the current
| aw and authority, they can do that on their own. Ot her key
parts of this is Section 312 applies only out to three mles.
And it's enforced by the Coast Guard primarily.

Those other laws | mentioned -- and | won't dwell on
these at all -- the top one is handling the, as | mentioned,



solid waste and hazardous waste. Marine Protection, Research
and Sanctuaries Act, sometimes called the Ocean Dumpi ng Act,
that controls taking waste from somepl ace to somepl ace el se
and dumping it, transport for the purpose of dumping, Ocean
Dumpi ng Act. Shore Protection Act, essentially a permt
system with Coast Guard to provide permts to vessels that
are hauling wastes from point A to point B. And the Act to
Prevent Pollution from Ships is the Coast Guard main
operating bill. And that controls oil, noxious substances,
gar bage, plastics.

Now, EPA has |l ong been known as a command and control
regul atory agency. And we still have those programs and they
still work very well. In the' 90s, we moved into sort of a
new era, the early "'"90s, in terms of other programs can work
as well, if not better, in certain circumstances. Doesn' t
al ways have to be all command and control. And these are a
number of our different types of non-regulatory programs. And
they are mainly voluntary. And some cut across different
aspects, different rules. And they can work in some cases.
So | put this up here because | think we can have a bl end
someti mes of regulatory and non-regul atory options that will
wor k wel | .

Exampl e: Green Ports is where we worked with
Ameri can Association of Port Authorities, provided them some
seed money. They went off and devel oped a very excell ent
environmental control manual for port authorities. And port
aut horities, as you may know, have great potential for
contam nants getting into our waterways from cargo handling
to storm water runoff, to sewage treatment, to air pollution.
And t hey put together a very good manual of what their ports
shall do. And they are out there pushing their ports to meet
those not requirements, but those types of best management
practices within that manual.

Gol f and the Environment or Sustainable Slopes, those
are two things that EPA has partnered with the industry. And
for golf, they are now building golf courses to be
environmentally friendly. And | think that's something that
didn't always happen. Same with Sustainable Slopes. The sk
i ndustry is working with us on trying to design their future
sl opes and their expansions in an environmentally friendly
manner .

So | guess | already said this. These are some of
our options that are under consideration. They are kind of
obvi ous, maybe. Regul ati ng under the NPDES permt program

cruise ships. Bl uewat er Network asked us to evaluate that,
and we will. If we do that, the question is what do you do
with all the other vessels that if you did that, the
exclusion is repealed, then all vessels would come under that
system

Revi si on of the Section 312 regul ations. And t hat
woul d be EPA acti on. Woul d be -- and maybe Coast Guard, as
wel | . | know. | mean, | don't know. But | ooking at those
standards, are they still applicable? Do they still work?

Shoul d they be modified?
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I nternational Safety Management Code, Environment al
Management Systems, those are some other options that can
wor k. This is some self -- workings by the self-management
on environmental issues by the cruise industry. But it's
just not self-monitoring. It actually works into Coast Guard
maki ng sure that those applicable plans are in place. And
t hen, of course, we are seeking other options.

The next steps. And there are many steps. As |I'm
finding out, this is not a simple matter. We got the
petition in March of this year. We're doing these three

public information hearings. | have prom sed ny bosses and
prom sed the petitioners that we will provide them a report,
an assessment in October of this year. That's not too far
away. And we're -- you know, we're collecting basic

i nformation. But | think that report will not have all the
answers.

What |'ve found to date is there's very little data
avail able to characterize our wastes -- our -- the wastes
comng fromthose vessels and the environmental i mpacts of
those vessels as well as how do you judge the effectiveness
of our regulatory programs to date. But we will have an
assessment, a draft assessment that will go out for public
review. We'll work with the Coast Guard in devel oping some
recommendations in where to take this. We will certainly
have public dial ogue. And | think this will continue for a
whi | e.

| don't like to stand up here and say we can't finish
this thing. We have to study it some more. But | think the
work that's been done here in Juneau is very telling. I
think it is probably the only data that | know of about these
di scharges. And | think they are not done yet. So without
some of that information, we will not be able to conplete and
make final recommendati ons.

| will say that EPA is going to be working down in
the Cari bbean. | manage a vessel, a 165-foot ship that we
use for monitoring surveys in the Caribbean, Gulf of Mexico
and the Atlantic coast. We will be making arrangements with

some cruise ships to follow those cruise ships, take some
sampl es before and after they go by. And certainly, we'l
have somebody onboard to take samples at the same ti me. So
we're going to do a study of cruise ships in the Caribbean
simlar to what's being done here.

And we had a little ad hoc work group this afternoon
that is helping to design that survey. And t hat survey, the
protocols we will openly ask for comments. We'll have a
st akehol der, information type group. And | want to make sure
t hat that aspect of our studies at EPA are fully supported by
the community.

And this is my |last slide. These are our customers,

as my boss likes to say. Like to always rem nd us that here
we are. So with that, |I'm done talking. We can take
guestions. Panel, would you |like to add anything? All

right. They think | did a great job.



MR. KREI ZENBECK: We didn't say that.
MR. VOGT: Al'l right. My friend Ron.

MR. TOROK: Those m kes are all live.
That's i mportant these days. The m kes are on.
| saw a hand back here. One point | think in
clarification before |I take a question, what we'd |like to do

is take this opportunity, a few mnutes if there are
guestions from the audience that you need answered in order
to direct your testimony, that's the primary thing that we

want to use this time for as opposed to testifying. That
will come in a few m nutes.

QUESTI ON: Thank you for a very nice
overview of what you're doing. Just a quick question: Coul d
you explain the MSD IIl criteria of having a holding tank?
What is the thinking behind that?

MR. VOGT: | think the basic thinking is
it's a holding tank that takes it to reception or outside of
three m | es. Because Section 312 only applies to inside of
three m | es. So | think that was the thinking at the time.
And my panel will help me.

CAPTAI N PAGE: Yes.

MS. HURLD: Actual ly, what | was going to
ask is we are recording this. I f you can give your name and
who you're representing before you speak, that would be very
hel pful for the court reporter. Thanks.

MS. ZI MMERMAN: My name is Patty Zi mmer man.
And | have received funding fromthe Green Party for mayor al
candi dacy in Juneau. And 1'd like to ask why the Coast Guard
isn't given the ability to do surprise testing? | can hardly
i mgine that a 165-foot vessel in pre-communications with
ships in the Cari bbean can perform a surprise inspection. We
know from Food and Drug reports that surprise inspections are
the only way to ensure enforcement and adequate | evel s of
protection.

MR. VOGT: Sorry. | don't like sitting
behi nd anyt hi ng. There's a good two aspects to that
gquestion. One is |I'"m doing some basic research on trying to
figure out what's comng from these. Now, | know you say,
well, how can we trust these cruise ships? |1'm going to have
somebody onboard on these cruise ships to help taking the
sampl es. " m going to have somebody out in the anmbient

environment taking the sampl es.
MS. ZI MMERMAN: How much does this cost?
MR. VOGT: How much does it cost is the

questi on.

MS. ZI MMERMAN: To set up an experi ment.

MR. VOGT: | don't know. | think it's going
to cost a | ot. | volunteered to do this two weeks ago. And |
have not scoped it out yet. The wor ki ng group's scoping it
out . l"m very fearful how much it will cost.

MS. ZI MMERMAN: It's not good science.

MR. VOGT: Pardon me?

MS. ZI MMERMAN: It's not good science.

MR. VOGT: | want it to be good science.

MS. ZI MMERMAN: Then don't pre-plan it.
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MR. VOGT: Let me get to my Coast Guard

friend here. And | et himtalk about the pre-planning aspect
and the ability that he has to do surprise inspections.
Because those abilities do exist. But what we have found
here is the need for fundamental information. And i f we
design the survey correctly, |I'm hoping that we can get some
of that.

CAPTAI N BASEL.: We do have the authority to
do surprise inspections. And we do at times surprise
i nspections. Sometimes it's more productive if we don't do
surprise inspections to have the right people there or, in
the case of -- EPA's case of doing that survey, they would

know for a fact the vessel's discharging at the time versus
if you do inspection, find out the ship is not discharging
anything at all during our surprise inspection. So we do a
scheme of both, of pre-announced and surprise inspections in
all our oversight.

MR. TOROK: | want to apol ogize for the
noi se, but it's the lights are warm ng up. So bear with us.
It will go away. Any ot her questions?

MR. KEEN: My name is Chuck Keen. "' m a
| ong-time resident here in Juneau. And 1'd like to know if
it's possible, does the cruise ship industry put money into
what we're all doing here today? 1Isn't there quite a bit of
money that the cruise ship industry kicks in here to make all
these things happen and maybe fund these things? |I'm just

curious.

CAPTAI N BASEL: Yes, sir. As a matter of
fact, because of the fast pace of this program we devel oped
this year, we didn't have the -- as you probably know, the
government has the flexibility in some cases to come up and
devel op programs. When we met -- "we" being ADEC, EPA and
the Coast Guard and the cruise industry -- met this | ast
fall, we said we ask for your cooperation in bringing this
program on line to determ ne what's really com ng off the
vessel s. And the cruise industry agreed to the program and
al so even funding the program as the | aboratories and
i ndependent parties, independent | abs, independent exam ners
and testers and facilitated that process. And then put in --
| asked them and they agreed to putting in special plumbing
that we tell where you need to put valves in so if you do
testing systens.

So actually, they were very proactive and hel pful in
bringing on this program this oversight program So it's a
poi nt that should be taken, too, that the information we have
today was facilitated to allow us to do that. We coul d have
done it on our own, but we probably -- | guarantee you the
Coast Guard would not have had as comprehensive a program on
our own or the ADEC because the agencies don't have the
flexibility.

MR. TOROK: And one point of clarification,
however, that's with regards to the State Cruise Ship
Initiative. The EPA assessment that is being conducted --



correct me if I"'mwong, Craig -- but there is no cruise ship
contribution in terms of funding to the EPA effort. So they

are two different -- but we are going to use the information
gl eaned through the State Initiative.

MR. KEEN: The reason | asked -- and |I'm
glad it was clarified. | just thought as | was |istening
earlier, |1 heard some pats on the back. And | just felt,

gosh, maybe the cruise ship industry could do something to
hel p out here too. And thanks a |l ot for clarifying.

MR. VOGT: Sur e.

MR. DI XON: My name i s Doug Dixon. "' m a
naval architect with Guido Perla & Associates in Seattle. And
| asked Captain Page earlier to clarify something that
per haps he could expand upon. And that is in their handout,
t hey have under the wastewater and black water and gray water
agency, U. S. Coast Guard authority, MARPOL Annex 1V, which
the U.S. is currently not signatory to. And maybe he coul d
speak to the issue of what the differences m ght be and if
there are plans for the U S. to become signatory to MARPOL
Annex | V.

CAPTAI N BASEL: That's a proposal before --
and you can clarify. You're closer to this than |I am,
actually, Brian -- but it's a proposal by IMO to modify or
actually incorporate some sewage treatment regul ations or
standards applying to vessels which presently right now only
exist in the United States. Ot her countries haven't --
unl ess they come to the United States, haven't been requiring
those standards universally, anyway. And MARPOL IV is an
issue that's simlar, but in some cases different than the
existing regulations for the United States with respect to
the treatment of sewage from vessels.

So we have not been signatory. It has not been
adopted by the international community yet. It's a proposal
and still being deliberated on. And there's some differences

as far as U. S. regulations is 200 fecal coliform MARPOL 1|V
is 250 fecal coliform There's some standards as far as
di scharge zones, four mles versus three mles and 12 m | es.

So there's several differences over that. So actually,

that's a proposal, but not something that's been adopted yet.
CAPTAI N PAGE: | think Ed really hit right

on the head. It's going to an international standard that's

really bringing the rest of the world up to basically
standards that are here now. And there are obviously some
di fferences. But it's a fast-moving piece of regulation in
the international community. And | think at this point, |
think there's only four countries that have actually signed

on out of 180. So you can see it's really just in its

i nfancy stages right now.
MR. TOROK: At this point -- one more?
MS. HURLD: | just wanted to follow up a

little bit more. You asked what some of the differences were
with what we currently do in the United States and Annex | V.
There are several reasons why we have not signed on to this
treaty. And some of that is some of the definitions in Annex
IV as to what they consider are in gray water or in the black
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wat er, we don't believe -- they don't match with the U. S.
definitions. We t hink that what we have is a bit more
protective.
Some of them include, they allow some of the ani mal
wastes as well as human wastes in there. They also talk

about some of the waste from the medical facilities onboard.
And so those are some of the reasons -- now, it's to be

wat ched as to what these regulations or these changes to it
are going to be. And we are engaged in that discussion. But

that's currently why we're not among the signatories of that
particul ar Annex.

MR. TOROK: Okay. It's 8:00 o'clock. And
on our agenda -- | know we don't often hold to agendas, but
we are tonight. We're going to begin the formal public
heari ng process. Craig Vogt will be the hearing officer.

And we'll be calling people up to testify.

What we would |like to have is actually have two
people come up at a time to the table and keep rotating out.
That way we don't have any down time there. | think over 30
peopl e have signed up to testify. So we'll want to move
people along as fast as -- as quick as possible. Al so, if
you don't feel comfortable sitting testifying, I"'Il put this
m crophone in the stand. And if you prefer to stand, you can
do that, too. So Craig?

MR. VOGT: This is the easy part for me. We
have a | ot of potential speakers. And | understand there's
several others. And let us -- two elected officials are
here, Representative Beth Kertulla. You're up first.

Foll owing Beth will be Assemblyman Ji m Powel | .

MS. KERTULLA: My husband doesn't al ways
follow me, but tonight he'll have to. Thank you. Thank you
for doing this this evening. My name is Beth Kertulla. And
|"m very fortunate to represent the district that we're in
right now, downtown Juneau. |'m a state |egislator. And ny
background is I'm an attorney. | have a strong background in
nat ural resources and oil and gas |aw and particularly in
permtting. Wor ked with a | ot of industries. And | must say
it's been an enlightening year working with this one.

|"ve carefully followed the various efforts rel ated
to cruise industry wastes for over a year now. Many of nmy
constituents were outraged in July 1999 when the Royal
Cari bbean violations and fines for illegal dumping of wastes
came to |light. We're really very happy to see the U. S.
attorney here tonight and other members of the bar who are
very interested in this topic.

What has come home to me again and again throughout
t he past year is that the regul atory agencies and the public,
me, don't know a great deal about what the cruise ships are
di scharging into Alaska's waters. We have a pretty good idea
of the wastes being generated onboard the | arge cruise ships,
but we really don't know how well they are being treated and
their quality as they are being discharged overboard.



| commend the efforts of the DEC, the Coast Guard,
EPA and the cruise ship industry over the past ten months
under the Alaska Cruise Ship Initiative. We are finally
begi nning to get some data from the sampling of wastes being
di scharged into our waters.

The prelimnary results fromthe first round of water
quality samples raise concerns in my mnd. What did the data
tell us? First, the black water sanmples contain fecal
coliform bacteria or suspended solids above the |evels
required for sewage treated in marine sanitation devices
onboard these ships.

Second, some gray water samples contain fecal
coliform bacteria in waste streams com ng from galleys,

| aundri es, sinks and showers. Finally, some of the cruise
ship samples had bacteria counts many times -- and |I'm
understating it here -- higher than the standard required by
DEC for Juneau's own sewage treatment facilities.

Fecal coliform bacteria are used by regul atory
agencies as one important indicator of water quality. Public
health i ssues may arise with high bacteria counts, depending

on the disposal method and | ocati on. | understand that these
sampl es come from several different ships and represent waste
streams handled in different ways. | also understand that

sampl e results from U. S. flag ships are comparabl e.
recogni ze that the large cruise ship companies have
voluntarily agreed to hold wastes while in port and
understand that they now wait until the ships are ten mles
from port and are cruising at |east six knots before

di scharge.

However, these huge waste volumes are still being
di scharged in Southeastern Al askan waters. And all we really
know at this point is that there may be -- should be concerns
about some of the fecal coliformlevels.

It will be another ten days before additional results
are avail able on samples being tested for 100 plus so-called
priority pollutants. These were chem cals that EPA regul ates
in waste streams under various | aws. At that time we may

have more concerns about chem cals in these waste streans.
Whil e the agencies and industry are |earning as these

efforts proceed, it | ooks to me that more work needs to be
done. | encourage EPA to continue this national assessment
of cruise ship wastes. It is important for the primary

federal environmental agency to examne its authorities and
its decades ol d decisions about treatment methods and the

need to regul ate wastewater discharges. Regul atory deci si ons
made in the md '70s with respect to incidental gray water
di scharges should be reconsidered in |light of the huge

vol umes being discharged by today's |large cruise ships.
| encourage EPA to join with the Coast Guard to
exam ne the federal regul atory approach toward the cruise

ship industry. Here in Al aska, many of us believe that this
i ndustry should be treated just |ike any other industry or
busi ness establishment. The oil and gas, timber, petroleum

refining, seafood processing and m ning industries, even our
dry cleaners and breweries meet our water quality standards
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and practices and are able to operate profitably in Al aska.
In Juneau and in Alaska, we welcome businesses that operate
responsi bly and cooperate with us to protect our wonderful
environment .

| also request that EPA take the raw data gathered
fromthis cruise season sampling and conduct its own
i ndependent anal ysis. This is merely a start at defining the
pollution issues and determ ning where more data is needed in
the future.

| am following closely your assessment and | ook
forward to your report later this fall. | am al so tracking
the Alaska Cruise Ship Initiative efforts as it begins to
wind up in the initial sampling this cruise season. As the
year ends, | suspect these efforts will conclude, among ot her
t hi ngs, that we need more information.

| believe there is a need for consistent sampling and
reporting in the future while | applaud the industry's
cooperation in this year's voluntary sampling. And | got a
chance to go onboard the ships and to talk to the engineers.
And we weren't monitored. We weren't followed around. And |
really truly appreciate that. And | think that's a huge step
forward. But nevertheless, it appears that a | arger, nore
comprehensive database is needed in order to determ ne with
any kind of certainly whether there is a potential public
heal th problem or environmental impacts in coastal Al aska.

" m | ooking at California' s new |aw. California just
had a | aw passed that requires reporting by the |large cruise
ships that release gray water sewage and other wastes within

the marine waters of that state. My office worked cl osely
with the assenmbly person that introduced that bill at the
begi nni ng when he was starting out. And it's really

interesting and a great thing to see that California has this
new | aw.
And as you may know, that with the help of many in

this audience, | introduced a cruise ship waste reporting
bill in the Alaska House of Representatives |ast year and

wor ked cl osely with other |l egislators in creating a companion
bill in the Alaska Senate. My basic prem se was then, and it
still remains, that we Al askans have a right to know what's

emtted in our waters and into our air.

Thank you for com ng to Southeastern Al aska. W
greatly appreciate this public hearing. We appreciate that
EPA understands the i mportance of the cruise ship industry to
Al aska and the value we place on our environment. Thank you
very much

MR. VOGT: Thank you. I n going forward
here, I'lIl ask the panel if they have any questions or
comments and then we will continue. So panel, any questions

or comments? Thank you very much.

MS. KERTTULA: Thank you very much.

MR. POWELL: Continue. Well, that's a hard
act to follow, but 1'lIl do my best here. My name is Jim
Powel | . l"mtestifying as a resident and a member of the



Juneau City and Borough Assenmbly. " m one of nine elected
of ficials that govern Juneau. | also represent the city on
the Air Quality Cruise Ship Working Group. And | have
attended several Cruise Ship Water Quality Wbrking Group
meeti ngs. | was there today, in fact. | speak here mainly
by myself. 1'm not speaking for the entire Assenmbly, nor the
communi ty. First, 1'd like to thank each of you for com ng
to our community. | want to also thank EPA for the job it
has done in the past. | want to ask that you continue to
expand your work into the area of marine protection for
cruise ships.

EPA has had a major influence in our community in
wor king to keep our community and Al aska's air, water and
ot her aspects of our quality of life that we hold in high
st andards, very high. | and other residents, | think, rest a
little easier at night knowi ng that there's the EPA out there
devel opi ng standards and doing their job. So |I'm asking you
to work on this issue also.

Al t hough we may not al ways agree and many ti mes

you' Il hear, you know, we do it differently up here, we need
and appreciate the science and professionalismthat you bring
and the Coast Guard brings also. | would like to thank also

the |l ocal office here,
MR. TOROK: And | also notice that the state

operations director, the new director, Marcia Combes, is here
toni ght. Thanks for your work in this community.

Toni ght EPA is challenged with taking some sort of
action regarding cruise ship wastewater discharges. As we' ve

heard this morning fromindustry and others, discharge from
five of the 11 ships does not pass basic water quality

st andards or the MSDs are not working on five out of 11

shi ps. Whet her it is for extended discharge holding times,
whet her the MSDs don't work, we don't know yet. For whatever
reason, the citizens and tourists need to know that this will
be fixed, that we're working on this problem and that we're
going to solve the problem We need to do somet hing about
it.

| think the good news is -- and M. Vogt mentioned it
earlier today -- and that is the industry, DEC, the Coast
Guard and other citizens have spent their own time -- they
are not paid to go to these meetings -- they spend their own
time to attend these meetings, are commtted to solving the
problem And you noticed that. And | also feel that -- |
believe that is true. That's the good news.

The work that's in front of us, | think, and it is
part of this process -- and | think it's been a pretty good
process that DEC has brought together with industry and the
Coast Guard and EPA. | think it's a pretty good process,
bumpy but good. | think -- to use a sports analogy, | think
we're -- the scoreboard so far, though, I think we've got a
| ong ways to go. | think that we've just agreed to play
t oget her. And we've got the team together. And we're just
about getting onto the field. And we don't know exactly
what's out there. We really haven't dug in. And we need a
| ot -- we need to do a | ot more.

